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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

BOARDYS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual report on the affairs of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accountis for the year ended on 31+ March, 2023,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

o (Rsin0)
 Particulars i 2022-23 2021-22
Profit/ Loss for the year before taxation (21606) - 14420
Less: Provision for taxation
 Current Tax - 21
Deferred Tax _ -
Earlier Years Tax as 429
Profit/Loss for the year (21759) 11887
DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for this year to conserve the resources for responding
to suitable opportunities in the future,

DEPOSITS
Your Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
There is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the Financial Year 2022-23.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITTMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statement relates and the date of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS u
During the year under review, the loans / guarantees/ investments covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the schedule during the vear.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASS0OCIATE COMPANY

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has one Holding Company, namely, Pratap Holdings Ltd. and one
Subsidiary Company, namely, Agaresh Finance & Properties Limited, the details of which are
mentioned in the schedule of the Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements. During the
vear under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. The Company not being a manufacturer company, the Companies 8(3) (Accounts) Rules, 2014
regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology. Absorption are not applicable.

B. The total Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the vear ended 31+ March, 2023 was Nil.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There has been change in the constitution of Board during the year under review.

Shri Rajeev Agarwal (holding DIN: 00337332) retire by rotation and being eligible seeks re-
appeointment.

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD
During the year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met Five times viz. on 30 May, 2022; 13 August,
2022; 14 November, 2022; 213 December, 2022 and 13" February, 2023.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company, it's Management Personnel and the Members of the Board have complied with the Code
of Conduct as laid down by the Board of Directors.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Director of the Company meet
with the criteria of their Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 andl
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(c]of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been fullowed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

if) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the company tor
that period;

iii) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that sucl systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employees within the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (A ppointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,



FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of all the Committees. Inputs were received from
the Directors; covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as adequacy of the composition
of the Board and its Committee, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors including the
Chairperson of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of jucigment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority
shareholders; etc. the performance evalualion of the Independent Directors was carried out by the
entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairperson and the Non-Independent Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

LISTING WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with the Calcutta Stock Exchange:

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in
future.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has a vigil mechanism policy to deal with instances of fraud & mismanagement, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record Lheir sincere thanks to bankers, associates, consultants and various
Government Authorities for their continue support extended o your company activities during the
year under review. Your Director also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed in your Company,

Place: Kolkata For & On behalf of the Board of Directors
Date: 30-05-2023 Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited
r—"'

AK. Goenka
DIN: 00312523
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KANORIA SRCURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kanoria Securities &
Financial Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the 1CAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. We have
determined that there are no Key Audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report; Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

I
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
eitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

b
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢] The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
our separate report in "Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements,

b
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b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall;

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding

Party or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence
compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the
Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of

S.B.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.301009E A ADEREN

c:_-,_ = AT A .I:..-J!

(7] xoukaTa J2)
Kedarashish Bapat NN /4
Partner peiud o
M.Mo.- 057403

UDIN: 2205 3902 GV EDM 7028

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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“Annexure-A”

(i)

(i)

(i)

In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:
(a) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls and
situation of the Property, Plant & Equipment,

(B} The Company has no Intangible Assets.
(b} The Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular pregramme of verification which, In our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property,
Plant & Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to uUs, no
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment as compared to book records.
(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company Is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the company.
(d] The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {Including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.
le) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for helding any Benami property under
the "Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made there under,

(a) The company did not hold any inventory during the year.
{biThe Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, In aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any time during the year.

The company has not made any investments In or granted any secured loans or advances in the nature of loans to or
provided any guarantee or security to companles, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year. However it granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year: In respect of such
Loans:

{2}
Amounts given | Balance outstanding as on 31-03-
Unsecured Loans granted to during the year 203 [Rs in Lakhs)
(Rs In Lakhs)
Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Associates 3.50 20.50
Other than Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Associates 3.75 1515

(b} In our opinion and in accordance with the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest:

{c) in respect of such loans given, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and in such cases the repayments or receipts are regular;

(d} As explained to us no-amounts of such loans are overdue for more than ninety days as on the balance sheet data.

{e} No such unsecured loan which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties,

{f} The company has not granted any unsecured loans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment,
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In respect of loans granted, Investments made, guarantees and security provided by the company during the year as
applizable, the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have bean complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit deemed to be
deposits during the year and therefore directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under in this regard
are not applicable.

As explained to us the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for the Company under
subsection {1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a). The Company has generally been regular in depasiting undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service
Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax. service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriste authorities. We are informed that the
Company’s operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Excise duty.

{b). There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Incame
tax, Service tax; Customs duty, Value added tax, Sales tax, Goods & Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at 315t March, 2023 for a period of more than six mionths from the date they became payable. We
are informed that the Company’s operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Excise duty.

There were no such transactions which were not recorded in the books of account of the company that have bean
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 19561,

(2} The company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings from any lender and hence sub
clauses (a) clause {ix} of the Order is not applicable.

(b)The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

{c) The loans were entirely applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

(d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes or vice versa,

(a) The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) during the year.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reportad during the
year.

{b) Mo report under sub-Section (12} of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors during the
year

© There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the Company, to be considered by the
auditors,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xil} of the CARO 2020 Order ks mot
applicable,

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Staterments etc as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

—
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[xiv) a} The company has an internal audit systam commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

[b) The raports of the Internal Audit for the period wunder audit have been considered by us in the process of aur
audit of the financial statements,

(xv) In our opinion and according to the informatian and explanations glven to us, during the year the Company has not
entered into any nen-cash transactions with jts directors or directors of its holding or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable;

(v The company Is a Non Banking Financial Institution under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and has obtained necessary registration from the Reserve Bank of India.
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:
() The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India
(d) The Company does not have miare than one CIC as part of the Company.

{xvii}  The Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year whereas there was profit in the immediately preceding
Financial year.

(xvfii}  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. However, the term of appointment of the
outgoing statutory auditor expired at the conclusion of the last Annual General meeting.

(i} On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financlal llabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements of the company, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a periad of one year from the balance sheet date:

[xx) Provisions of secticn 135 relating to Corporate Social Respa nsibility are not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf of

S.B.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009

Kedarashish Bq;h
Partner
M.No.- 3

UDIN: 230STHE e EDM T023

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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“Annexure-B"

KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

r the year 1" Mar

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KANORIA SECURITIES &
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensu ring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Contrals
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respacts.

/



S.B.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Accountants

P-36 India Exchange Place, Kolkata 700001
Tel # 033-22254832, Tele-fax # 91-33-22258149, Email- kabkol@yahoo.com

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Chartered Accountants

P-36 India Exchange Place, Kolkata 700001
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

Kedarashish Bapat

Partner
M.No- 057903

UDIN: 22057903 RGVED e 8

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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ADDITIONAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

Thie Board of Directors,

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited
8, B. B. D Bag (East),

Kolkata — 700001

We have audited the Balance Sheet of M/s Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited as at 31% March
2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, Based on
such audit and as required by the “Non-Banking Finance Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions 2016" issued by the Reserve Bank of India in exercise of powers conferred by section 45MA(14) of
the Reserve Bank of india Act 1934, we report that:-

A, (1)
(2}
(3)

The company has obtained valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) under Section 45IA of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934,

The company is entitled to continue to hold the CoR in terms of its principal business criteria (i.e.
financial assets/ income pattern) as on 31*' March 2023.

The Company meets the required minimum Net Owned Funds requirement as on 31* March
2023 for its prescribed class of NBFCs.

B. (1) The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non acceptance of public deposits

(2) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended 31® March
2023,

(3) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts, as
specified in the systematically important company directions,

For and on behalf of
5.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

Kedarashish Bapat

Partner

M.Mo.- 057903

UDIN: 2203403 GV EDW ST

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2023



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Suindalone Balance Sheet as ot 31t March, 2023

PARTICLILARS AS PER NREFC DIRECTRCRN ANNEXED

A per on Reporn of even dae:
Far 8 B, ANDEKER & £0. o
CHARTERED ACOOUNTANTS: o L

Membership No. 057903

Place ;- Rolkaas
Tated: 300k May, 2023

v 2205 FHO3 PEVEDMT02.8

[T in bimdreds)
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(b amd cash equivalents 4 47796 54,873
Bank Balsnce other than [a) above 5 4,631 4406
(Receivables
-Trade Receivables 8 0,008
-Cther Receiviblhes 4540
Loms T 1T 1454098
Invvestmenis in Sub=idiaries fi 261 000 261000
trvestments pther than in Subvidiaties 9 Wil 324 38255
(hher Financial Aseegs 10 9104 116,625
Total Financial Assets 1667 28 236345
(MNon Financial Assets
|Propeity, Flant and Equipment 11 1951 1921
Dieffered Tax Asset TG -
Total Mon Financial Assets 26987 19271
Total Assets 1,694,208 2383185
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Finsncial Liabilebes
Payabies
Teade Payabiles
iy Totsl catstending chaes f ficro enterprises il veheer small
CnTerprises
i) Torek outstanding dues of creditors other than mices
enterprises and ocher small enterprises
iCnher Payables
1} Total ousstanding dues nf micro enterprises and other sl
Lerprises -
i} Total ourssanding dues: of credivors other than micmo
lemterprices and orfer snill enterprises 10,571 12430
Prefevence Shares 12 370000 370000
{Borrowings 13 |06, 233 1,556,658
[Cither Finsescial Lisbilities 14 71608 168 334
Total Financial Lishilities 1518612 2007 428
Mon Financial Liabilitkes
Dicferred Tax Liabikicy - 1240
Lopg Term Provisions i3 10,619 10618
'Total Man Financial Lishilities 10614 11459
Tozal Liahilizies 152881 L118287
Equiry
i} Equity Share Capital 16 $UB.000 408,
(b) Other Equity 7 (230210 {144,100
Total Equity 164,978 63899
Totsl Equity and Liahilities 1,694,209 2,383,185

For aned om behali of the Board

Y/

rwal

DI 372

L

AfiLP. Wilwaikar
Compiny Sectetary

M
[Eoenka

Whioke Time [Rrecto

N QOIS

;_q_u..i.x.'l;i.i-ﬂf““”



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(" in hundreds)
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 18 71.484 85,846
Dividend Income 12913 3373
Dther Operatung Income 19 (3.696) 4552
1 |Total Revenue from operations 80,711 93,771
[ |Other Income 20 7.079 26,107
I []l-'ml Income (1+11) 87,790 119,878
Iv |EXPENSES:
Finance Costs 21 105796 102,363
Employee Benefits Expense = =
Other Expenses 2 3,600 3,095
o Expenses (IV) 109,396 105,458
Vv |PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (II-IV) (21,606) 14,420
v1 |TAX EXPENSES
|Current Tax - 2,104
Earlier Years Tax 153 429
Deferred Tax - -
VII |PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V-VI (21,759 11,887
Vil |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (86,118} 11921
(ii) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (8.956) 1.240
B_ (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss =
(i} Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or foss : =
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (NET OF TAXES) (77.162) 10,681
IX |Total Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year (VII + VI (98.921) 22,568
Earnings per Equity Share [Nominal Value of Share - Rs. 10
Basic & Diluted 23 (0.53) 0.29
Significant accounting policies
PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
Az per our Report of even date,
For 5. B. DANDEKER. & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F.R.N: 301009E -
s 7

Faj A K Goenka
Trector Whole Time Direct:
(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) : DIN: 00337332 DIN: 00312823

FARTHER
Membership No. 057903 -
TS A ADARS A
Place: Kolkata © Ajit P. Walwaikar
Dared: 30th May, 2023 Company Secretary
upiN: 2% oSG EBBLVEDM 7028



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Stsndalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2023

{Tin hundreds)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: =
Net Profit/{Loss) before tax & extra ordinary items: (21,606) 14,420
Adjustments for:
Depreciation =
Cecurities Transaction Tax 885 00
Diwidend Income {12,923) [3.373)
Profit on Sale of Investmenis 1,561 {10,477} {17,155} (19.628)
Operating Profit before working capital changes (32,083) {5,208)
Adjustments for:
{Imcrease)/Decrease in Investments on Fair Value through
Profic and Los Account 34696 (4.552)
{Increase)/Decrease In Borrowings [490.475) 582451
{Incredse)Decrease in Other Bank Balances (225) {465)
{Increase)/Diecrease in Other Payables (L, B65Y, [10,548)
{Increase)/Decresse in Other Receivables 450 738
(Imcrease)Decrease in Loans Given 1.¥32.651 (668,451)
{Imerease)/Decrrase in Other Financial Assets 3604 12,695
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 80,108 (B0, 108)
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Liabilities (96,526) (211274)
631 468 (3794703
Cash generated from operations 599,385 {384,680)
[Hrect Taxes Paid 21,843 18,794
Mt Cash From operating activities (A) 621,228 {365, 886),
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Cecurities Transaction Tax (885} {00)
Dividend [ncome 12923 3373 E
Profit on Sale of Investments [1561) 17.155
Sale/[Purchase) of lnvesrments (628,782} (169 440) -
Tiet Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) (628,305) (149,812)
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Interest paid on short term borrowings -
Met Cath from Financing Activities (C) = E
et Tncrease/(Decresse] in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (70771 (515,698)
|Cash & cash equivalents as at lst April, 2022 54,873 570,571
Cash & cash equivalents as at 3ist March, 2023 47,796 54,873

NOTE : FIGURES IN ERACKET REPRESENT OUTFLOW

PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Report of even date.
For §, B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FR.N: 301009E

(KEDARASHISH BABAT)
PARTHNER
Membership No. 057903

Place ; Kolkata
Dated: 30ch May, 2023
w1205 Fh02 BAEDN TR

BIM: pO337332

e

For and on behalf of the Board

A

Ajit P, Walwaikar
Company Secretary
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While Time Dinectar
DM 00312873
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equiry for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Current Reporting Period {% tn hundreds)
Chamges in Eqg Restated balance |Changes in equity] Balance at the
Share Capital due| at the beginning |  share capital end of the
to prior period | of the current during the current
ﬂBaI:nue at the beginning of the current EITOLS reporting perlod | current year reporting
reporting period period
408,000 : A8, 000 = 408,000
Previous Reporting Period T in hundreds)
Changes in Restated balance | Changes in equity| Balance at the |
$hare Capital due] stthe beginning |  share capizal end of the
to prior peried | of the previous during the previous
Balance at the beginning of the ETTOrS reporting period | previous year reporting
previous reporting period period
408,000 ¥ 408,000 . 408,000

B. Other Equity

¥ in hundreds)

[193,785) 10681 {144,101)
Changes in accounting policy of prics
period errors . = .
Hestated balance at the beginning of the
cursent reporting pericd 39,004 (193786} 10,681 (144,101}
Profit/Loss for the year - i?l.?.‘i‘:“?r = ZLT59)
[Ciher Comprehensive Income - - (771D (77.162)
Toral Comprehensive Lncome 39,004 {215,545) (66,481) (43,022}
Transfer to Sratutory Reserve = .
Balance as at 31st March,2023 39,004 IZIE,S-E]J (56,481) {243,022}

Previous Reporting Period (¥ tn handreds)

Restated balance at the beginning of che

previous reporting perind 36727 (203,596 - {166,669
Profit/Loss for the year - 11,887 - 11.887
Orher Comprehensive [noome - . = -
Total Comprehensive [ncome 36727 {191,509} 10,681 {144,10F)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 2217 (2,277 - .
Balance as ot 315t March,2022 39,004 (193,786)] 0681 (s

* 2036 4f the Profits for the Financial Year 2022-23 transferred to Staturory Heserve g required by Law,
PARTICULARS AS PER MBEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Repont of even date.

For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. 2 For and on behalf of che Baard

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS '
F.RN: 301009E : '
< = c,p el CQ9 W '
i _ TajesvA 4 K Goenka
(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) " Disectar Whale Time Director
PARTNER DIN: (0337332 DN, 00212823
Membership Ma. 057903 RN
o
Place : Kolkata BT Ajin P Walwaikar
Dared: 30th May, 2003 Company Secretary

wee 12658 J4¢3 BEVEDMT 28



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1 Company Cverview

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited (" The Company *) is a Non Banking Financial Company having its
Registered office ar 8, B.B.D Bagh East Kolkara 700001 The company was incorporated on 30th August 1916. The
company's shares are listed on The Caleutta Stock Exchange Limired (CSE).

2 Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance

These Finanéial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Acr’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133
af the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoptions was carried cut in accordance with Ind AS 101- First
time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with 1st April, 2018 as the transistion date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use:

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees

¢) Basis of measurement

The Enancial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using anather valuation technique. In determining the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characrenstics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.,

Criﬁcﬂwmmﬁngiudgmmﬂmdk&ymofuﬁmﬁmuumﬂinw:m assumptions —

{i} Fair value measurement of Financial Instrumens:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models ave taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.



(ii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards known
contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of raxes, duties and other levies, if any, in

respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the sertlement of such obligations are
expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities, The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techmigues as follows:

- Lewel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

_ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are ohservable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

- Lewvel 3; inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on oheervable market data (unchservable inpurs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liabiliry fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

A) Operating Cycle
All assets and lishilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Sratements

based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents.

B) Financial Instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability or equity
‘instrument of another entity.

i, Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs thar are attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset, Trade receivables

are initially measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in three categories:

- Amortised cost

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets,




Financial assets at amortised cost
A Fnancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is ta hiold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual rerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash

flows thar are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount putstanding. The effective interest rate
{FTR} amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial gssets at FYTOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held wirthin a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows thar are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {QCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Starement of Profic & Loss.

Investment in Subsidiary
The Company has accounted for its investrnents in its subsidiary at cost/deemed cost.

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’. However, in limited circumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may be
the case if insufficient recent information is available to measure fair value, or if there is wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asser expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109

ii. Financial Hability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
valae,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
- Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
« Financial liabilities at amortised cost




Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it 1s classified as held-for-trading, or it is & derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Fi ia] liahilities at .

Cither financial liabiliries are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the FIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within ene year from the balance sheet dare, the carrying amounts
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liabiliry.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial hiahility) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets rransferred or liabilities assumed,
shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amcunt presented in the balance sheet when, and only

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
ot a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

C) Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments : financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets
in FVTPL category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind A5 109, the Company recognises 12 menth expected credit
losses for all criginated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement af Profit and Loss.




Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporring date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together inta
cash-generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs, If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
4n asset or CGL is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs:

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
i use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rare that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific 1o the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

D) Provisions {other than for employee benefits)

Prowisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to sertle the obligarion and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised s a finance cost.

E) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
durties collected on behalf of the government.

F) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective inrerest method.

G) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates toa business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
OCL

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted ar the Balance sheet date.
Dieferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
lisbility is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period.




H) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

1) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition Jess
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an asset comprises of cost of acquisition or construction
and includes, where applicable, inward freight, duties and taxes, installation expenses, professional fees, borrowing
coses, initial estimates of the cost of dismantling, cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment’s and other
costs directly attributable to the bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the intended manner and purposes. Capital Spare parts which are integral part of the plant and equipment
are capitalised, When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the same are
capitalised and old component is derecognised.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
iters {major components) of property, plant and equipment. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation has been provided as
per the useful life specified under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes om Standalone Financisl Sratements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(% in hundreds)
- —

4. |Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand E 5
Falances with BADKS - iN CUTTENE a¢COUNTE 47 706 54,873

(% in bordreds)

5 |Other Benk Balances

In Fized Dieposirs (with marurity of more than 3
months and upro 12 months) 4631 o 400

4,631 4,406

% in hundreds)

Trage Necevables considered good- secured

Tade Recelvables consrdered good: unsecured 80,108
Trade Réceivables which have significant liscresse in
credit risk
Trade Receivabies - cxedit impaired 2 -
L:ross - 80,108
Less Allowances for impairment loss on eredit impaired -
trade receivables
e 3 80,108
Trade Receivables Ageing
Agar I1se March 2023
[Particulars Outstanding for followlng periods from due date of payment
Less than & & months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than | Total
months 1 year 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - -
[ii] Undlsputed Trade receivables - which have - . - - -
significant Increase in credit risk
{1if} Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired . . ~ - - -
[iv] Disputed Trade receivables - constdered good - - . - . -
[v] Disputed Trade receivables - which have . - - =
signiflcant inerease in creditrisk
[vi] Disputed Trade receivables - creditimpaired . o - . = =
As ar 31se March 2022
anm:ul:rs Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & & months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than | Tetal
months 1 year 3 years
{1} Undisputed Tracle receivables - considered good 80,108 - - - - 80,108
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - which have = . - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(iii} Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired = - - . B
[I¥] Disputed Trade receivables - considerad good . - - = - -
[} Disputed Trade receivables - which hawve . - - - -
significant increase in crédit risk
[vi) Disputed Trade receivahies - credit im paired - . . - - -
(T in hundreds)
7 |Loans
- Belatad Pamy 20,504 15871
- Others 310,943 1448227
331,447 1,454,098




EANORIA SECURITIES & FINAMCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes on Standalone Financial Sistements for the year ended 3l March, 2023

(¥ in hundrads}

[nvestment in sobsidiaries ot Deemed Cost

resh Finance & Properites Led
Exquiny-5.00,000 shates 0f Rs [0 each {20 o0 i
5,00 D00 shares} P
10% Moo~ Cumulative Redeemable Preference 211,000 211000
Shares
261,000 261,000

1% in hundreds)

1o Fully paid up Equity Shares
l?ﬁun Holding Led 400,000 40,2000 400,000 40.200
Pradiumea Finance & Propertes Lad 125 000 12559 125,000 12,559
Supertech Addivives Lid 125,000 o550 125,000 12,559
Sapmaresh Investments Lud 85,000 G005 85,000 395
New India Shipping Lines Lid 38,000 4,560 3000 4560
Asarce Tovesements & Trading Co. Pyvi Lid 0000 1200y 0000 1200
Anchor Lessing Lid 62,000 7 DOE B2.000 7,008
&8.011 #8011
I fully paid up Mon - Cumulative
| Redeemable Preference Shares
Pradyumna Finance & rries Ltd {1026
:\‘mn?mulltivr Endaemt Preferenice 34,500 iy S WRIL:
Supertech Addizives Lid (7.5% Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Prefesence Shares) 50,000 30,250 500,000 50,250
103577 103,577
Az Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
__'_m:
Fully Faid Equiry Shares-Cluoted
Cheinplast Sanmar Lid 7700 16785 7700 51217
DT Limdted 0000 15.720 20,000 12,350
Indizheils Reat Estares Lid 5,000 A4S 5,000 5.052
|indis Grid Trust 50,300 X3s.038 - E
Poongwele Fincorp Lud 8200 T3985 g200 21173
Powergrid Infrasmactur lovesument Trust 203834 73006
Ereel Authority of India Lud 20,000 16,540 20,000 19.710
Tata Meotors Led 5000 21,040 5.000 1,687
Wedanta Limited G000 16447 6000 24,201
734,026 156,390
Murual Funds
HOFC Vs Shoet Term Pund-Regular Plin
Gnowth - 3 3R 24,971
- 24971
At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
{(FVTPL)
Fally Paid Equity Shares-Cuoted
Arvind Polyeot Lid 2.000 147 7000 147
Banswars Symthetics Lid 4,050 4904 4050 603
Gremack: CNC Lid 4000 152 & 000 152
[~ |REjeaan Symihetics Ld 9,000 90 9,000 o
Tru, aH T Lad 2000 15 20K 15
5310 4,008
31,534 382355




EANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2023

T in hundreds) =1
10 |Other financial assets

Balances with Govt Authorities 2,881 2,672
Advances 26,661 29712
Income Tax Faymemnts (MNet of
Provisions) {2,097} 19505
Interest Receivable 63,573 G, 336

91,024 116,625

(¥ in hundreds)

Property Plant and Equipment
{A) Gross Carrying Value
As at 1st April, 2021 256,657 340 91
Additions - - . -
Disposals / deductions - - - -
As at 31st March 2022 256,657 340 21
Additions - - - -
Disposals / deductions - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 256,657 340 o1
(B) Accumulated Depreciation
As at 15t April 2021 237,399 332 B6
Charge for the year - - - -
Deductions - - - -
As at 31stMarch 2022 237 399 332 B&
Charge for the year = - E -
Deductions - - . -
As at 31st March 2023 237,399 33z ga| 237817
{C) Net Block (A-B)
As at 1st April 2021
Asat 31st March 2022
As at 31st March 2023

19,238
19,258
19,258

un

19,271
19,271
19,271

L= <]
wn

Note a: The company considers 59 of the asset value as residual value and does not pravide depreciation on such assets which
have been depreciated to the extent of 95 per cent of the acquisition cost.

The ledse period of the fixed assets of the Company on lease has expired and these assets are in the possession of the lessee but are
carried in the books pending final settlement of disputes and recovery of lease dues from them. In view of the status of the Company's
leased assets, no depreciation s charged on the same.

12 [7.5% Non Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs 100 each

A70,000 370,000
370,000

5.70,000 7.5% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each are redeemable before the expiry af a
period of ten years from the date of allotment Le. 18th March, 2002, subject ro the option of the Company 10 redeem
the same at any time after three years from the date of allotment either in whole or in parts by giving three months'
notice. The Preference shares are pending for redemption in accordance with section 55 of the Companies Act. 2013




T im hundredi)

Unsecyred Loare: from Related Pamies

75,024 B46.593

T Ipsecuted Loats from Dibers

KR TH0065

(066,051 | 1556658

14 |Other Pinanciel Liabilicies

¥ in handreds)

Inzerest Payabile

[Secunty Deposits

rhet Linbnbt

" l.nﬂng

Provision for Fon Performing Lessed Ases 10,619 10519
10,619 10,619
¥ in haandeeds)
16 [Share Capital
Aurhorised
2 R0U00U000 (31sr March 2022 : E50.00000) Equity Shares 2500000 2500000
of Bs 10 2ach

TOUKLO00 (3 15t March 2022 - 10,00.000) 7,5% MNan
lCumubasive Redesmable Freference Shares of Rs 100 each

100000 0000

lssued Subscribed and Pully Paid up

401,80,000 {315 March 2022 : 40.80,000) Equiry Shares of Rs
10 each ismest cabwrwize than in cash

16a) 39,590,000 Equiry shares weze alloted & fully paid-up by way of Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Reserved.

16k} Reconcilistion of shares curtstanding at the beginning and sx the end of the reporaag period

4z the hoginning of the period

4,080,000 408,000

4,080,000 408,000

Chapstanding st the end off thie period

4,080,000 408,000

4.080,000] 408,000

16c) Terma/rights artached vo equity shares

The Company ha only ene class of equity shates having 3 par valae

Proap Hoidings Lid (Halding Company)

mrlmﬁﬂmuinthemnm

3324151

of * 10 par share, Eacly halider of equity skiares i eniritiéd 10 oné voue per

3,324,151

16e) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promaters

Drisclosure of sharebolding of promoters 3s 2 March 31, 2023 is as foliaws

O Change
Shares beld by the promater at the end of the year duting the
Year
of Total
S0 lemur Name No. of Shares ‘;".l‘ims
1|Pratap Holdings Ltd (Hoiding Company) 3524151 | 56385 ML
Trischostre af shareholding of promouers a5 a Mazch 31, 20072 §s as follows
% Change
Shares held by the promoter ai the end of the year during the
YEar
94 of Total
Smo  |Promoter Name Ko, of Shares | oo
1] Pratap Holdings Lid [Holding Company] 1524151 a6.80] KU




KANORIA SECURTTIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{% in hundreds)
17|Other Equity
Components
Staturory Reserve 39,004 39,004 36,727 2277 39,004
Retained Earnings (193,786) (21,759) (215.545) (203,396) 9,610 (193,786)
Comprehensive
Income 10,681 (77.162) (66,481) - 10,681 10,681
(144,101) (98,921)) (243.022) (166.669) 22,568 (144,101}
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KANORLA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Swutements for the year ended 315 March, 2023

(# in hundreds)

18 |lnterest [ncome
Tncome from financing activity 1484 85 146
71424 85,848

192 Dpﬂlﬂli Income
Profit)| Loss) Trom capital market operations [3.696) 4552
(3.696) 4552
(T in hundreds)
20 [Other Income
Other Interest 2304 1,630
Profivi{Loss) on Sale of Shares (2:859) 17,155
Profit/{Loss) on Sale of Mutual Fund (Debr Fund) 1298 1,263
Profit/(Loss} on Specularion of Shares - {1.509)
Prafit(Loss) on Dermvatives B8.194 7568
Tressury Income 45 -
7.079 26,107
(% in hundrads)
21 |Finance Cosis
Interest Paid on Loan 105,796 1K 363
105.796 102,363

| :

Paymen: to Auditors
- i feaes ag 38
- Caher Taxation and certificsion matters 72 92

Advertisement Expenses 78 7

Legal & Professional Charges LI77 B35

Filing Fees 6 59

Profession Tax 5 5

Membership & Subscription 757 502

Directors’ Sirting fees 00 180

Securities Transaction Tax 885 500

Miscellaneous Exprenses n 1E7

3,600 3,095
(¥ in humndreds)
23 |Earmings Per Share

'Weighted average number of Equity Shares

outstanding during the year 4,080,000 4,080,000

Number of Shares considered as weighted average

lshares and potential shares ousstanding for

calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share 4,080,000 4,080,000

Profit after Tax artribuzable to Equiry Shareholders {21.759) 11,887

Teominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 1

Earnings Per Share (Basic) 0.53) 0.29

Earnings Per Share (Diluted) {0.53) 029

|




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Hotes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

-

24. Operating Segments

An operating segment is 8 camponens of the Company that engages it bsingss setivties Erom witich it may sarn re-venues and incus expenses, including
roveruies and expenses that relate to wansactions with any of the Company’ & other companents, snd for which discrete financial informarion s svailsble. Al
opersting segments’ aperating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's mansgement 10 imitke decisiens shour rescurces to be allocated to the segments
and assess their performance.

The Compary has only cne reportable sigment ie. Mo Banking Financial Company snd hence [ND A3 108 Opersting Segments not spplicable to the company.

5. Related Party Disclosure
i}mummmmmmwnamm have sccurred or not
Enterprise an which the Company has contrel

Holding Company

ii) Mame of the other related parties with whom transertions haven taken during the year

a) Key Managerial Persons

1. Sl Bajeev Agarwal Director

2. 8k Anil Kumar Goenka Whale Time Director & Chief Financial Officer
4, Shn Baswaranjan Chakraborty Director

4, Smi. Vandana Kanoria Director

& Shri Rehit humar Pandey Director

6, Shri Sagar Shaw Director

b) Relative of Key Managerial Pezson

1, Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria
2. Shri Pranay Kanoriz
3. Smt Urvi Sheth

£} Enterprise over which Key Managerial Person is having significant influence
1. Ajsy Kumar Kenaris (HUE)

2. Ajay Kancria Family Trust

3. Tanna Electro Mechamies Pvr Lid



i1, Transactions with Releed Parries

a. With Subsidiary and Holding Company

(% in hunclreds}
_.ﬁg‘rﬂh Finance & Properries Led 31032023 5,268 250 345 5,664
(A Subsidiary Company) 31032022 4,630 50 k7 5 258
Prazap Holdings Lad [31/0a/203 19,503 3,250 787 1 4,640
{A Halding Company) 310372022 6,704 3250 649 10,503
) Related Party Transaction taken place during the year:-
i Loan taken & Repayment therect
Tanna Flecrra Mechanics Py Led 131032023 11,604 88,000 4,069 58.06% 45,604
(310372022 [7.158) 63,000 {194 41,044 11604
[imt Vandana Kanoria 310872023 534,500 1,198,000 9,745 1,742,245 -
31082022 185506 745,000 23.04% 415,055 534,500
Shri Ajey Bumar Kanoria 31032023 110.000 - 7.353 117,353 -
1032012 9907 110,000 3.637 13544 110,000
Shiri Pranary Kanaorda 51,002023 50,000 55 50,055 *
31032002 47,764 SLO0D 478 49,242 50,000
Smt Urvi Sheth 51032023 : 2 £ =
3100/2022 4,563 50 4,713 -
Ajay Kumar Kanoria (HUF) [31/0372023 111,069 - 7435 118,494 .
(31032022 112,293 118000 5.089 122,263 111,068
Ajay Kanoria Family Trus 3170352033 9420 - 2354 2354 25420
132022 3431 30,420 389 4650 040
i, Other Transactions:
(T in hundreds)
Directors' Sitting Feos
1. Shri Rajeev Agsrwal 40 40
2. Shri Amil Kumar Goenka 40 40
3, Shri Biswaranjan Chakmborty 40 40
4. Sma Vandana Kanoria = 0
5. Shirt Reohix Bamar Pandey 40 40
&, Shri Harindra Singh Sirohi - 40
7. Shri Sagar Shaw 40




H.Mn&:ﬁuwhmnﬂnmﬂtrﬁmhﬁn&mmyuputhwdmmﬂﬂofﬂu

| Agaresh & Properties Lid

Afrer | Year

Pracap Holdings Led 14,640 | Business purpose. | After 1 Year
willlamson Magor & Co Lad 240,000 | Business purpose  [Within 1 Year
Amil Limited 20,197 | Business purpose  |Within 1 Year
Capricelo Trading Pvr Led 5,565 |Business purpose  IWichin | Vear
Tirupati Screen Pringing Co Led 14,131 |Business purpose  [ARer 1 Tear
Ky -sec Urokerage House Irudia Led 1020 |Business purpose 1 Year

27 Financial Instruments and Related Disclorures

Companies Act 2013 se on 31st March, 2023

7.1 Fair values vs CAFTying amolmts
‘Ih:&irnluuoci'ﬂmdl.lmmd‘:i:lri.l.iﬂu.tapthuwﬂhmmﬁumu-bawuhm”mmdﬁnnﬂﬂmmdalnmm“u
follows:
(% in hundreds)
Cash and cash equivaients 47.79% 5 47,796 47,7596
Pank Balance other than (1) abave 4531 = 4531 531
Receivables z
-Trade Receivables - =
-Ocher Receivables a = - = -
Loans 331,447 - - 331,447 331447
Investnests in Subsidiacies 261,000 - - 265,000 261,000
Trvesome nis other than in Subsidiesies 191,988 5087 BO8.ZZ2 1,005 247 931,314
Ocher Financial Assets 91,024 - - - w914 91,024
97 886 5.037 - 08,222 1,741,095 | 1.667,23%
Borrpwings 1066233 - - 1066233 1,066,233
|Getier Fayables 10571 5 10,571 10571
Preference Shares 370,000 = = 370,000 0,000
[Cthver Brancial liabilities T1EME - 71808 71.808
1518,512 - - 1518512 1518612

The falr vﬂmﬂm&ﬂmm&hﬂiﬁu.mﬂhﬂwﬂhm

follows:

mﬁn;mmnﬂuhurﬂinﬂnmmtnfmpm of 31er Manch, 2071 are a3

¥ in hundreds)

Cach and cash equivalents 54,873 - - 54,273 54873
| Bank Batance other than {a} aborve 4,406 4,406 £406
Feceivables - - -

-Trade Receivables §0.108 80,108 B0, 108
Oither Receivabies 450 450 450
Loans 1,464,098 1464008 | 146409
Investments in Subsidiaries 261,000 261000 261,000
Investrnents other than in Subsidiaries 191,968 5037 162440 366,465 32355
Other Financial Assets 116,625 - . 116,625 116,615
2,173,548 5037 - 169,440 2348035 | 2353515

Borrowings 1,556,455 - - 1,556,658 1556658
Other Payables 12,436 - - 12,436 12,436
Preference Shares 270,000 - - 370,000 0,000
[Hher Dnencial Labiities 168,334 = 168,334 165334
2,107 428 - 2,107.428 | 2,107,428




27.2 Fair Value Megmirement

The fair values of the fnancial assers and fiabilines ane included st the nmount at which the instruiment couid e exchangs in 8 carrent oransaction between
willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale,

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categories the value mio 3 levels. The 1:I'-||:|'II.I§E-."I;D valuation rechniques usad t9 measure fair
valne of financial instruments ace:

Level 1= The hisrarchy uses guoted [adjusted) prices in active ket for {dentical assets or liabilities, The fair value of all bonds which are traded in the stock
exchanges ls valued using the closing price or dealer quatations s at the reporting date.

Leval T: The fakr value of Brancisl instruments that are not traded in a0 setive market (for example raded bonds, oves the counzer derivatives) is determimed
using valuation technigues which manieslie the use of observable marker dara and rely o littde o3 possible on company specific estimates. 1F 811 significant inpues
required to fair value an insrument are obgervable, the instrumsent is included in Level 2

Level 3: Tf orfie or more of the significant inpurs i not based on ohservable mirket data, the tnstrument is incloded in Level 3.

773 Finangisl risk management

The Company has exposure po the following siaks arising from finsncial Instroments:
{i) Credic risk

(i) Liquidity risk

(i} Marker risk

Risk management framework
The Company's principal fnancis] labilities comprises of borrowdngs, and trade and other payables, The main purpse of these financial liabilifies is to finance

the Company operations. The Campany's principsl financial asseis inchuds trsde nnd other recelvables, investments and cash and cash equivalenis that derive
directly from b opervations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variery of findncial risks, including marker risk, credic risk and liguidicy sisk. The Company's primiary risk mansgement
focus 15 to mirﬁmiupmemi:hdvmcﬁm;nfmknriﬂmnmﬂmmd performance. The Company uses derivative financial instroments o mitigate foreign
exchange related risk exposures.

The Company's exposare 1o eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual chavacteristic of each customes and the concentration of risk from the top few
customers, The Company’s risk mamagement assessment and policies ancl processes sre esablished o identify and analyss thie risks faced bry the Company, 1o set
appropriste Tisk limits snd contrels, and to monitor sach risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are
revigwed Tegalacly 1o reflect changss in market conditions and the Company's activities.

This nete presents information aboar the Company's expesure to sach of the above risks, tha Company's objectives, palicies and processes for measuring and
managing nsk:

{i} Credir risk

Crecit risk s the rigk of fimanciil koss to the Company if & customer of counterpETy (0 4 firanicial trstrument fadls 1o meet Iis contractual obtigations, and anses
principally from the Company's recetvables from cistomers and loans. In addition, erediy risk aries from finance guaranfess

Companie's credil nsk arises prircipally from the trade receivables aind cash & cash equivalents,

Customer crediy risk is managed centratly by the company through credit spprovals establishing credit ity and contineasly monitoring the credit worthiness
of the castomers to wham the credit is extended in the aormal course. of business. The concentration of credit risk is limited due 12 the face thas the cusomer
base is large and unrelated. The Company estimates the Expected Credir Losset on the hasls of its evaluation of eact cose, Provision s being made where the
purscanding period exceeds 4 years (B50% followed by funther provislon on year 1o year basls hased on the management evaluation of each cose,

Crodhit Hisks From balances with bamks are managed in accordance with the Company's policy.

Exposure to credit risks

“The carrving arsount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposire 1o credit tisk, The maximuain exposure to-credic risk a3 of 31se March, 2023,
and 315t March 2022 are a5 follows:

(¥ ir bundreds)

Loans 330,447 1.464.058
Advances 26,662 811
358,109 1,493,810

ii) Liquidiey risk

Liguidiay risk is defined & the risk that the Company will not be able to sertie o mest 13 obligations on thme or at reasonable prce. Pradent Liquidity risk
management implies maintaining cufficient cash and marketable securities asd the availabilicy of funding through an adéquate amoant of credit facilities 1o meet
abligations when due. The Cempany’s finance tesm is responsible for Tiguldity, funding ss well as sexloment managemsent, In addition, Processes and policies
related to such risks are overseen by senior mansgement. Management moniters the Company’s lquidity position through rolling forecssts on the basis of
expected cash fows. The Company's spproach to managing Hquidicy is 1o ensure, as far a2 possible. that it will always have sufficient liquidity, subject to it
restrucuring propesals, o meet s liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

I the opinicn of the management, the Company’s cash Fow [ram business: bormoawing or financing wiuld be sufficiens o mest the cash requiments for its
aperavoin with support of i lenders,



Exposure to liquidiry risk
The takile befiow provides details regarding the remaining comtraerusl marurities of financial liabilivies ax the reporTing date based on coneractial undiscounted
payTmEnts.

-

% in hundpeds)

Borrowings 1,066,253 . - 1066353

lo:m Tinancial Labilites 71,808 . - TLA08
(T in hamdreds)

Barrowings 1,556,658 - - 1.556,658

her financial liabihoes 168.334 - = 168,334

(i) Market risk

Markes visk is the rick of loss of furune sarnings, fr value or forure cash flows thut may Tesuls from @ change in thee price of a financial instrument - The value of
3 financial instrument may change as 8 esult of changes in the inteeest tates, foreign currency exchange rates. commodity prices, equiry prices and other miarket
changes that effect market risk sensitive instraments. Market risk is aributable to 4ll marker nsk sensivive financial insTumenis intlading invesmments and
deposits, fareign currency receivables, pavables and borrowings. The gonl of market risk management i cprmization of profic and conmroling the exposure to
prarker Tisk within acceptable limirs

{a} Currency risk
Foreign cusrency risk is the risk impact related (o fair value a¢ Fumre cash fows of an exposure in foreign curremcy, which fucraste due to changes in foreign

exchange eares. The Company’s exposure t the visk of changes in foreign exchange razes Telates primarily to the import of raw materisls and spare pans, and
gxports of finished goods.

Expostre to currency risk
The company is not exposed to any curmency ridh

{b) Interest rate risk

Irterest rate risk b the risk that the fir value or forure cash flows of & financial instrusent will fuctuae becanse of changes in market interest rates, The
Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rares relared primarly oo the Company’s shor sevm barsowing with Aoating interest rates. The
Company constantly manktors the credic markers and ebatances its financing srategies to achieve an optimal magurity profile and financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Canrpany ‘s Inrerest bearing fnancial insruments st the end of the reporting pericd are a3 follows:

{2 in hiandreds)

Loans 33La 1,464,098
Borrowings 1066333 1,556,658

1397680 3,020,756
Sensitiviry analysis

Fixied riltie fristruments that are carried at amrtised cost afe not subject (o interest fute risk for the purpose of sensitive analysis.
Cash fow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instraments
The comspany does not have variatle rate Instruments. S0 the compary I not exposed Ko interest rate Tisks.

¢} Equiry price risks
The Corspany's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from movement in marker price ai Telsted securities classified elther as fatr walue through OCT or a5
fair value through profit and liss. The Company manages thie price risk through diversificd porfilio,



28 Capital Mansgement (Ind AS 1}
The fandaments! goals of capital mansgement are 1w
- safeguard their ability to continue as & going comtern $o that thuy ean conrinme 1o provide rearms for sharehelders and benafits for other stakeholders, and

_ fainsaln an optimal capinl structure to veduce the cost of capital =

The l!mrdu-fD':mcmrsh#l.hapa-irmyrepurruibiulijmiinudnnatrmgupulM'mdmmmemnfcwiﬂthmughpudmmm-gmuddw]m
finds and Teversging opporunities in domestie end international financial markess so 55 19 maintain investor, credieor and market confidence and 1o setain
furare development of the budiness,

For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital inclodes issisid capimal end all other equity reserves, The Company, manages its capial structure in
Tight of changes in the sconomic and regulatory snvironment and the. requirements of the financlal covenonis The Company apphied the same capital rsk
management strategy that was applied in the previous period.

Thic Company manages its capital on the basis of net deb ra squity satin which & et debi (toral bersowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by ol
EqUTY.

29, Financlal Ratios

Reasons for
Particulars Numerator Densminator SUME20I3 AL/D3012 % Variance variance of
mare than 5%
Capital 1o risk- welghted sssens|Capital Fisk  Weighted] 10.15% 11358 -11%
ratio (CRAR) Assets
Tier I CRAR Tierl Capital |Risk  Welghted|7.75% 9.7 1% 20
Tier [ CRAR Tier]] Capital Risk  Welghted)2:40% 1.68% 43%% Ratio has|
Agsets changed due io
decrease i

0. Previgwus year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform o this year's classification.
Accordingly, amounis and ocher disclosires for the preceding yeass are included s an imtegral parr of the carment year Financial Statemesats and are o be read in
relation to smounts and orher disclosures relsting 1o the currént year.

PARTICUILARS AS FER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per gur Repors of even dare.
For 5. B: DANDEKER & CO. ’ For and on behalf of the Baard
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ' 3

FRN:201009E

= |
nka
(KEDARASHISH Whele Time Directar
PARTNER DiIM: (0312823
Membership Mo, 057903 .

JAPAD ST T

Place - Kalkata & T VA P, Walwaikar

Dared: 3ch May; 2023 Company Secretary

wie 22057 Q03 BGVED™MT028
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kanoria Securities &
Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
Agaresh Finance & Properties Ltd (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as "the
Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated loss,
consolidated changes in equity and its conselidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing [SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are
no Key Audit matters to cimmunicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, nsolidated financial performance and
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consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Qbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
I =
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we report in respect of the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order that; '
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There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARD) report on the financial statements of Agaresh Finance & Properties
Limited, subsidiary company incorporated in India, included in the Consolidated financial statements,

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies [Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

b) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company incorporated in India.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities {"Intermedmnes”) w:th the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:
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« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its subsidiary
company incorporated in India or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(if) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or
« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and its subsidiary
incorporated in India hence compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India to its
directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India, is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301

Kedarashish Bapat oy &
Partner
M.No.- 057903

UDIN: 2505 F903R4VED D L3

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the
vear ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the mtemnal financial controls over financial reporting of
Kanoria Securotoes & financial Services Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary, Agaresh
Finance & Properties Limited, incorporated in India. as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable
financial informarion, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by ICAI and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respeets.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.3010 aE,

Kedarashish
Partner

M.No.- 057903
UDIN: 220535 0SS BV EDD L7723

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023



EANORLA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Consolidared Balunce Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
I ¥ in hundrads )

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 47.501 54,994
Dank Balance other than (a) above 5 4.53] 4,408
Feceivables

-Trade Receivables & B0,108
~Oreher Receivahles 3 450
Loans 3 325843 1 458830
Investments 8 OR1.574 432 605
COther Financial Assers 2 91002 116,645
‘Toral Financial Assets 1450731 2,148,036
Mon Financial Assets

Property, Plang and Equipment 10 £3.271 19271
Deferred Tax Asset 7,716 -

' Total Mon Financial Assess 26,587 19271
Total Assets 1477.718 2,167,307
LIARILITIES AND EQUTTY
|LIABILITIES
|Financial Liahilities

FPayables

Trude Pavables

i) Total oustanding dues of micrs enterprises and

other small enterprises :

i1} Total outstanding dues of creditors cther than

micro enterprises and other small enterprises =

Onher Payables

it Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

oiher small enterprises .
i1} Toesl outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enrerprises and other small enterprises 1030 12,496 L]
Preference Shares 11 370,000 370,000 '

12 1,066,233 1.556,658.

Other Financial Liabilivies 13 71808 168,334
Total Financial Liabilites 1,518,671 2,107 488
Mon Financial Liahilities

Deferred Tax Lishilicy - 1,240
Eorg Term Provisions 14 10619 10,619
Total Non Financial Lighitiries 10619 11,859
Total Liabilities 1,529.2%0 2,119,347
Equity

[a) Equity Share Capital 15 408,000 408,000
b} Ceher Equity 16 {459.572) (350,040
Toual Equity (51,572) 47,960
Total Equity and Linbilities 14777148 2,167 307
FARTICULARS AS PER WBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Report of even date.

Far 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. ] For and on behatf of the Board

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS: /7 =5
F.R.N: 301009E ]

(KEDARASHISH T S i i Whole Time Direct
FARTNER == DAN; 00337352 DN 00312823

Membership No. 057903 »
(ST WE G TR S

Place : Kolkzta fpa

Dated: 30¢h May, 2023 Compasry S’ecmmaw

o 2205 3903 BLVEDD (13




EANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consalidated Statement of Profis & Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Place

: ‘Kolksa

Dated: 30th May, 2023

UDIN: QLS 2BV ED D (73

Afit P. Walwaikar
Company Secretary

Inter=s: Income 17 71099 85,415
Dividend Income 12923 iim
Other Operating Tncome 18 13,636] 4,552
I |Total Bevenue from cperations B,326 93.340
N |Ckher Income 19 T 26,107
1 [Total Income {T+1T) B7 A0S 119,447
IV |EXPENSES:
Finance Costs 0 5. 796 102,363
Employee Benefits Expense =
Jrher Expenses X1 3.8 3283
Total Expenses {IV) 109,622 105,646
¥ |PROFITHLOSS) BEFORE TAX (III-TV) LT 1380
VI |TAX EXPENIES
Currens Tax 2,104
Eartier Years Tax 153 424
Dieferred Tax -
VI |PROFITALOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V-VI) AFTER TAX (22,370) 11,248
PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NON-
VI |CONTROLLING INTEREST =
PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE T THE O'WNERS OF THE
X [COMPANY {F2.330) 11,268
X |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =
JA (i} Teerns than will not be reclassified to profic or loss {86, 118) 11,921
(i} Income taxes on lerns that will not be reclassified v profit
lor Loss {8,958 1,240
{E. (i} loerns that will be reciassified to profit of loss
=
|OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE MON CONTROLLING INTEREST
[OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ITHE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ~
'TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (WET OF
TAXES) 177, 162) 10,581
X1 |Total Comprehensive Incomes{Loss) for the year (VI + X) {99,532) 21,948
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
XI1 |THE NON CONTROLLING INTEREST - =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
XM |THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY {99.53%) 21,549
XIV |Esrnings per Equity Share [Nominal Value of Share - B, 10]
Basic & Diluted 22 0.55) 0.8
ﬁmﬂm accounting policies 3
PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
As per our Repont of even date
For 5. B. DANDENER & CO. e Far and on behalf of che Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ‘;1'_ e
F.RLN; 301009E ' )
e ——— 1) - | #
- ad
— S g [ N2
(KEDARASHISH BAPA x\_.-_:'-_f’ff* s Whole Time [Hrec
PARTNER — DM DO337352 Dils: (0312823
Membership No. 057903 e
" LA L= ':_,‘-.-LL.JLL"‘-’H"M




EANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 3023

(T in hundreds)

A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met Profit/(Loss) before tax & extra ordinary lremis: {12217 13,801
Adjustments for:
Depreciation . .
Securities Transaction Tax B85 SO0
Dividend Income RER:rzy) | (3,373
Profit on Sale of Tnvestments 1561 (10477} [17,155) (Y9628

Operating Proflr before working eapleal changes (32,694)) (58273
Adnistments for

(Increase)/Decrease in. Tnvestments on Falr Value through
Frofi and Loss Account 1696 {4,552
{ Increase)/Decrease in Borrowings 490,425 ) 382491
[iIncrease)/Decrease in. Other Bank Balances (2259 (465)
IElﬂcrﬁsle’Decmin Onher Payables {1,566} (10532}
{Increasel/Decrease in Other Receivables 450 738
| Increasel/Diecrease in Loans Given 1,038,247 1667 B13)
|iTnerease) Decrease in Other Financial Assets 3,604 12595
[ Increase)/Decreass in Trade Recelvables 80,108 {B0.108)
{ Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Lishifiries (B6.526) 211, 274)
632,063 (378.B200
Cash generated from operations 599,365 (384,647
Direct Taxes Paid 21,843 18,784
[ Net Cash Fram operating setivitles (A} 621,212 (365,853))
B, Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Securirles Transaction Tax aEsy - (2000

Dividend Income 12,973 3373

Profit on Sale of Investments (1561} 17.155
ﬁaw{hﬁhm! of Investments {638.782) (628,305)] 1169 440} (1498121
Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) (628.305) (149,81Z)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activiries:
Tnteress paid on short term borrowings

Net Cash from Finaneing Activities (C) =
[Fet Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents
(A+B+C) {7.093) {515,565)|

[Cash & cash equivalenrs as st 15t April, 2022 54,994 570,659
Cash & cash equivalents as at 315t March, 2022 47,901 54,994

NOTE : FIGURES IN BRACKET REPRESENT OUTFLOW

PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

Az per our Report of evers date.
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. > For and on behalf of the Board

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
W, Nt
L A'K Goenks

(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) q AT~ While Time Director
PARTNER DIN; 00337332 DTN DO312523
Membership Mo, 057903 -

" 3 -L,-L_LKI._J-L‘-L“";‘L'
Phice s Kolkits LA AS P, Walwalker
Dared: 30th May, 2023 Company Secretary
UDIN: 2305 YIoA BLEVEDOLLT 3

F.R.N: 301005E
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31sr March, 2003

Corrent Reporting Period (% o hundreds)
Changes in Equity | Restated balance | Changes in equity| Balance at
Share Capital due | atthe beginning | share capital the end of
; to prior period | ofthe current during the the current
Balance at the beginning of the current errors reporting period | currentyear | reporting
reporting peried period
408,000 = 408,000 408,000
Previous Reporting Period (T in hundreds)
Changes in Equity | Restated balance | Changes In equity| Balance at
Share Capital due | at the beginning | share capital | the end of
to prior period | of the previous during the the
Balance zit the beginning of the previous errors reporting period | previous year previous
reporting period reporting
08,000 ¥ 408,000 408,000
B, Other Equiry
Current Reporting Period

Balance as at 1st April, 2022

10,681

[T In hundreds)

(360,040)
Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errons - =
Hestated bDalance a1 the beginning of the
rrent reparting peciod 39,004 {m,mjl 10,681 (360,040)
Profiu/Loss for the yeor (22370 = (22,370
‘Comprehensive Income - (77,162 (77,162)
Total Comprehensive [ncome 39,004 {432,095) (66,481 ) (459,572}
[Transfer to Scatutory Reserve - - -
Balance a5 ar 315t March, 2023 35,004 (432,095) {66,481}  (459.571)

Changes in scoounting policy or prio:
period errors

Reszated Balance at the beginning of the
previous Teporting perbod

Profit/Lass for the year

Orher Comprehensive [ngome

Toral Comprehensive Income

Transfer o Statutory Reserve

Balance s at 315t March, 2092

5,727

36717
297
39,004

@18.716)]

(4187167
11,258

407,448

16,681
10,681

2277
(409.715)

10,581

¥ In hundreds)

(381,989}
11,268
10681

PARTICULARS AS PER NBEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

Az per our Beport of even date.
For 5. B. DANDEEER & CO.

Membership No. 057903

Place : Kolkara
Diated: 30th May, 2023

UDIN: 2508 F F03 RV EDp (LT3R

For and on behalf of the Board

\o

A K Goenka

Whole Time Direcior

DiN: 00312823
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1 Company Overview

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited (" The Company ) is a Non Banking Finance Company having its
Registered office at 8, B.B.D Bagh East Kolkata 700001, The company was incorporated on 3(th August 1916, The
company's shares are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited(CSE),

2 Basis of Prepararion

a) Statement of Compliance

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual hasis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, The Ind AS are prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoptions was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101-
First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with st April, 2018 a5 the transistion date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees,.

c) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction berween market participants at the measurement date under eurrent market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In determining the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimares.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions —

(i} Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fuir values of financial assets and fnancial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value Is measured using cerain valuation techniques. The inputs 1o
these models are aken from observable markets where possible, bur where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. = g




(i) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the Hkelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of raxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the senlement of such o ions
are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

e} Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or liabilities,

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asser or liability, either
directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unabservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

3 Significant accounting policies

A) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

B) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Alll financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables

are initially messured ar transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date;

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

+ Amaortised cost

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets,




Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asser
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financidl asset give rise on specified dares to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The effective
interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss,

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCL if it is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as ‘well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI),

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above caregories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Starement of Profit & Loss.

Other aquity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’. However, in limited circumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may
be the case if insufficient recent information is available 1o measure fair value, or if there is wide range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109

ii, Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities a1 fair value through profit or loss which are intially
measured at fair value,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
* Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition, Financial Habilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.




Financial liabilities ar amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Amy gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maruring within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximares fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balarice Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liabilicy.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial lability or a part of ir (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial lability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right o set off the amounts and it intends either to serrle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

C) Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments : financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials
assets in FVTPL category,

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit
losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expecred credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition, The Company's trade
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating umnits (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs,

[
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An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assers.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

I} Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company Has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the lisbility. When discounting is used, the increase in the prowvision due 1o the
passage of time is recopnised 35 a finance cost.

E} Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured ar the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

F) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

G) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or
in OCL

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the axation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
lisbility is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period.

H) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equiry
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares sutstanding during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating dilured earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average mamber of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares,
I) Property, Plant and Equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an asser comprises of cost of acquisition or
construction and includes, where applicable, inward freight, duties and taxes, installation expenses, professional fees,
borrowing costs, initial estimates of the cost of dismantling, cost of replacing paris of the property, plant and
equipment’s and other costs directly attributable to the bringing the asset ta the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the intended manner and purposes. Capital Spare parts which are integral part of the
plant and equipment are capitalised. When significant pares of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the same are capitalised and old component is derecognised.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate

items {major components) of property, plant and equipment. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

-

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation has been provided as
per the useful life specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,

1) Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the group is exposed to or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Consolidation of
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, labilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains the control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items
of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides ewidence of an impairment of the transferred assets. Appropriate adjustments for deferred tases
are made for temporary differences that arise from the elimination of unrealised profits and losses from intra-group
transactions or undistributed earnings of Group's entity included in consclidated profit and loss, if any.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
Consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member's financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies. The
financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as
that of the parent company, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary,
the subsidiary prepares additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to
enzble the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impractical 10 do so.
Non-controlling interest in the profit / loss and equity of the subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and the consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
This results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and noncontrolling interests 1o reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference berween the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.




In case the Group ceases to consolidate a subsidiary because of a loss of control, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial agsers. When the Group loses control
over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of
any non-controlling interests, cumulative translation differences recorded in equity and recognise resulting difference
between the fair value of the investment retained and the considerarion received and total of amount derecognised as
gain or loss attributable to the Parent. In addition, amounts, if any, previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income in relation to that entity are reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as would be required if the
parent had directly disposed of the related ‘assets or liabilities.



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes om Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Cash in hand

Balances with Banks - in current accounts

In Fixed Deposits (with maturity of more
[than 3 meonths and upto 12 months)

4,631 4,406
4,631 4406

: Reoei\ra

Trade Recewvables considered good- secured

Trade Receivables considered good-

80,108

| Trede Receivables which have significant
ingTease in credit risk

I Trade Receivables - credit impaired

80.108

Less Allowances for impairment loss on
credit impaired rrade receivables

=

80,108

| Trade Receivables Ageing
As at 31st March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 momths to
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables -
| considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables = which
have significant increase in credit risk

[iid} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit
impaired

[iv] Disputed Trade receivables -
considered good

[v] Disputed Trade receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi] Disputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired




As ar 315 March 2032

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan& |6monthsto |1-2Zyears | 2-3years [More than3 | Total
months 1 year VEars
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 80,108 80,108
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
(Eid) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - - g
impaired
[iw) Disputed Trade receivables - - -
considered good
(v] Disputed Trade receivables — which - - -
beave significant increase in credit risk
[vi] Disputed Trade receivables - credit - = =
impaired

Loans

(2 i hundreds)

- Related Party 14,640 603
- Cthers 310,943 1448227
325,583 1,458,830




KANORILA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31s March, 2023

(% in hundreds)

& |Investments
At Cost
Tirapati Holding Lid 750,000 40,200 730,000 40,200
Pradyumna Finance & Properties Lud 125,000 12,359 125.000 12,559
Supertech Additives Led 125,000 12555 125,000 12559
Samaresh Investments Lid 85,000 4005 45,000 9,925
|Mew India Shipping Lines Lid 38.000 4560 38,000 4,560
Asarco Investments & Trading Co. Pyt Led 20.000 1.200 20000 1,200
Anchor Leasing Led 62,000 7.008 62,000 7.008
88,011 88,011
In fully paid up Non - Cumularive
y-Sec Brokerage House India Lid SO000 50,350 30000 S50
Pradyumna Finance & Propersies Ltd
534,600 53,727 534,600 53,707
Supertech Additives Led 50,000 50,250 50,000 50,250
154,227 154777
At Fair Value through Other
|Comprehensive Income
Fully Paid Equity Shares-Quoted
Chemplast Sanmar Lrd 7.700 26,785 7.700 51217
[CFC Limiged 20,600 15,720 20,000 12,350
Indiabulls Reat Estares Led 5,000 2,445 5,000 5,052
Nindia Grid Trust 250,800 338,028
Paonawalla Fincorp Lid 8,200 23,985 8,200 22173
Powergrid Infrastructurce Investment Trust
222834 273,016
Seeel Autherity of India Ld 20,000 16540 20,000 13,710
Tara Mozors Lud 5,000 21,040 5,000 21,687
Vedanta Limited 6,000 16,467 6,000 24,201
734,006 156,350
IMutual Funds
HDFC Uhra Short Term Fund-Regular
Plan Growth J03.385 513 203,386 28971
- 24971
At Fair Value through Profic and Loss
(FVTPL)
Fully Paid Equity Shares-Opoted
Arvind Polyeor Lid 2,000 147 2004 147
Banswara Synthetics Ltd 4,050 4906 4,050 8,602
Gremach CNC Led 4,000 Ly, 4,000 152
Rajratan Synthetics Led 2,000 &0 2,000 20
Ty, SHT, Lxd 2,000 15 2,000 I5
5,310 2,006
981,574 437 605

Ba. Refer note on Other Equity Investments under Note 3 Significant Accounting policies. Due to the
exceptional circumstances therein described cost has been taken to be the best estimite of fair value fn case of

some oF the investments,




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{" in hundreds)

her financial assets
Balances with Govt Authorities 2,899 2,690
Advances 26,662 29712
Income Tax Payments (MNet of Provisions) (2,092) 19,905
Interest Receivable 63,573 64,336
91,042 116,643

(% in hundreds)

10 |Property Plant and Equipment
(A) Gross Carrying Value

As at 1st April, 2021 256,657 340 91| 257,088
Additions = - -
Disposals / deductions = - = -
As at 31st March, 2022 256,657 340 91 257,088
Additions - - . -
Disposals / deductions - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 156,657 340 a1 257,088
(B) Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April, 2021 237399 332 Bo 257,817
Charge for the year - = : =
Deductions 5 = - =
As at 31st March, 2022 237,399 332 86 237,817
|Charge for the year - =
Deductions . - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 237,399 332 86 237.817
|(C) Net Block (A-B)
| As at 1st April, 2021 19,258 8 5 19,271
Az at 31st March, 2022 19,258 B 5 19271
lAs at 31st March, 2023 19,258 8 5 19,271

Note a: The company considers 5% of the asset value as residual value and does not provide depreciation on such
assets which have been depreciated to the extent of 95 per cent of the acquisition cost.

The lease period of the fixed assets of the Company on lease has expired and these assets are in the possession of
the lessee bur are carried in the books pending final settlement of disputes ind recovery of lease dues from them.
In: view of the status of the Company's leased assets, no depreciation is charged on the same.




(T in handreds)

Prefﬂme

7.5% Non Comulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 370,000 370,000
370,000 370,000

370,000 7 5% Mon Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Bs 100 each are redeemable
before the expiry of a period of ten years from the date of allotment ie. 18th March, 2002, subject
to the option of the Company 1o redeem the same at any time after three years from the date of
allotment either in whole or in parts by giving three months’ notice. The Preference shares are

pending for redemption in accordance with section 55 of the Companies Acr, 2013;

(T in hundreds)
Unsecured Loans from Related Parties 75,024 846,593
Unsecured Loans from Others 991,200 710,065
1,066,233 1,556,658
% in hundreds)

13 |Other Short Term Financial Liabilities
Tnterest Payable 32,400 128,926
Security Deposits 16,860 16,860
|Other Liabilities 21548 21548
71,808 168,334
(¥ in hindreds)

Provision for Non Performing Leased Assets 10:619 10619
10,619 10,619
(% in hundreds)

3170872020

Authorised
2,50,00,000 (31st March 2022 ; 2,50,00,000)

2,500, 2,500,
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each SR e
10, 00,000(3 15t March 2022 : 10,00,000) 7.5%
Moo Cumulative Redeemable Preference 1,000,000 1,000,000
Shares of Rs 100 esch

3,500,000 3,500,000
Issued Subscribed and Fully Paid up
40,80,000 (31st March 2022 : 40,80.000 )
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each issued otherwise 408,004 408,000
than in cash

408,000




13a) 39,90,000 Equity shares were allorted as fully paid-up by way of Bonus Shares by capitalisation of
Reserves.

15b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

[
|
P

Ap the beginning of the period. — T %800
|Cutstanding ar the end of the periad 4,080,000 408.000 408,000 4,080,000 408,000

15c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equity shaves is entitled wo
one vote per share:

15d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Pratap Holdings L1d (Holding Company) 3,524,151 8638%|  sea8w] 3524151 86.38%)

15¢) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows

% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
Year
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares o aCToEs
Shares
1}Pratap Holdings Lid [Holding Company) 3,524,151 86.38% Nil
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as ar March 31, 2022 is as follows
% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
Year
% of Total
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares Chiavas

o

Pratap Holdings Ltd {Holding Company) 3,524,151 86.38%] Nil




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥ in hundreds)

Other Equity
|Cnmpunanta
Statutory Reserve 39,004 = 39,004 36,727 2277 39,004
Retained Earnings (409,725)] (223700 (432095 (418716) 8991  (409,725)
Comprehensive
Income 10681 (77.162) {66,481) . 10,681 10,681
(360,040)]  (99.532)] (459572)| (381,989) 21,949  (360,040)
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes on Consolidared Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Interest on Loans

|ncome from financlng actvity

71,059

71,099

i

Cnler [nseres 2301 1,630
Profit/{Loss) on Sale of Shares {2,859 17155
Profitf|Loss) on Sale of Munmal Fund (Debr Fund) 1. 298 1.263
Profit/{Loss) on Speculation of Shases R4
Profit{Loss) on Derivatives 6294 7568
T reasury income 45 -
7.079 26,107

S M =

e ey

Interest Paid on Loan 105,796 102363
105,796 102,363
{1 hundreds)

o

[Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees = 55
- Other Taxation and certificarion matters &7 107
Advertisement Expenses 78 7
Legal & Professional Charges 1277 06
Filing Fees 76 B3
Profession Tax 15 =]
Membership & Subscripiion 757 2
Directors’ Siuting fiees 200 180
Conveyance &0 a0
Securities Transaction Tax BES 900
Miscellaneous Expenses n 188
3.B25 3.283

I: Shm

2
Wieighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding
during the year 4080000 4.080.000
Mumber of Shares considered as weighted average
shares and potenrial shares ourstanding for caleulation
of Diluted Earmings Per Share 4,030,000 A, 080,000
Profit after Tax atrribaiable to Equity Shareholders {22370 11.268
MNeminal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 10
Earnings Par Share [Basis) [1.55) (.28
Earnings Per Share {Diluted) {0.55) 028




—?ﬂ
KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financisl Statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2023
43, Operaring Segments b
An operaning segment is 3 component of the Campany that engages in business scelvries from which (e may caim revenues and incur ewpenses, including revennes and

expenses that relate 1o mansactions with any of the Company’ s othes campanents, and for which discreve finamelal information is svailable. All cperating segmenis'
operating results ave reviewed regularly by the Company's management to make decisinns about resourees 1o be allocared to the segments and assess thedr performance.

The Company kas anly one reporable sogment ie. Non Banking Financial Company and hence IND AS 108 Operating Segments nor applieable 1o the Company.

ﬂhdmmmmmmwuummhmmMm

Enterprise which has Conerol over the entity

Holding Company

ii) Name ﬂmmnmmmmmmmmm year

a} Key Mansgerial Persons :
1. Shiri Rajeey Agarwal Director

2. Shr Anil Kumar Goenka Whale Time Director & Chief Financial Oficer

3. Shri Biswaranjan Chakmborty Director

4. Smt. Vandans Kanoria Director

5. Shri Riohit Kumar Pandey Tirertor

&. Shri Smgar Shaw Directar

b} Relative of Key Managerial Person J
1. $hri Ajay Kumar Kanoris

2, Shri Framav Kanoris

3. Sme Urvi Sheth

<} Enterprise over which Key Mamagerial Person is having significant Influenice
1. Ajay Kumar Kanaria (HUF)

2. Ajay Kanona Family Trust
3, Tanna Electro Mechanics Pvr Lid

iii. Transactions with Felated Parties

With i d
L Holding Company #in hl:ll'liﬂ'ﬂll-. ¥

Pratap Holdings Led s
iA Holding Company) 1082022 6,704 3,250 a4 . 10,60% |




58.06% |

31032072 194} 44,044 11,504
Smr Vandina Kanora 317032073 534,500 1,198,000 9,745 1,742,245 E

3170372002 185 505 745,000 23,049 419,055 534,500
Shri Alsy Kumar Kanoris 310372003 110,000 - F.a53 117,353 -

317052022 9907 110,000 3637 13544 110,000
Shri Pranav. Kaneria 3103023 50,000 5 5 50,085 5

31032022 47,764 51,000 478 49242 50,000
Ajay Kamar Kanoria (HLIF) 31A03/2023 111,058 - 7AZS 118454 -

31082022 112,293 116,000 5 039 127,263 111069
Ajay Kanoria Family Trust 31032024 29420 . 2,354 2,354 29,420

310A2072 273 30,420 389 4,620 29,420
¢} Ciher Transactions

Diectars Sising Fom

{¥ in hondreds)

Shri Rajeey Agarwal

Shri Anil Kumar Coenka

Shri Sagar Shaw

Shri Biswarsnjan Chakraborey

Shri Rolit Kumar Pandey

HEEEE

SEEEE

15. Disclosure relating to loans or security given by the Company as per the requirements of section 186(4) of the Companies Act. 2003 a5 on 315t March, 2003,

Particulars Loan amount  [Purpose Maruricy
Williamson Magor & Co. 240,000 | Business purpose | Within | Year
Al Limited 50,157 | Business parpose | Within 1 Year
Capriccio Trading Pyt Lid 5.595 | Business purpose | Within 1 Year
Tirapati Screen Printing Co Lid 14;131 | Business parpose | After | Year
Prutap Holdings Led 14,840 | Business purpose | After [ Year
Kay-sec Beokerage House India Lrd 1.020 | Business purpose | Afrer | Year




26 Financial Instrumants and Related Disclosures
26.1 Fair values vy carrying amounts
The fair values of finencial sssets and liabilities, together with the carrying smounts shown in the sustement of financial position of 3-1ar Mareh, 2023 are a4 Sollows:

-

{2 in homdreds)

[Cash: and cach eqrivalents 47,901 s g 980
Bank Bakance ocher than (3) above 4,631 s = - 4,631 4.631
[nvestments 142,238 5087 BOR 222 1055457 931,324
Loans A75.583 - - - 305,583 35583
[Trade Receivables - = 5
Other Receivables - 2 = - %
1Other Financial Asgers 91042 . - - 91,042 21,042
711,395 5,037 808,222 1,524,654 | 1,400.481
Borrowings 1066293 - - 1066233 | 1068213
Cither Peyables 10,630 i - 10,630 T3
Freference Shares 370,000 5 3 amooea ]| 0000
Crher fimsncial Habilites 71.808 - 71808 71,808
151861 - - 15185711 1518671

The falr values of financisl assets and mmwmmmmmmmm of financial position of 315 March, 2022 are as follows:

(% in humdreds)

Cash and cash equivalent 54.5994 - 54,594 54,504
Bank Balance other than (a} above 4 406 - E 4405 4405
Jinvestrments 242,738 5.087 - 165,440 416715 432,605
Loans 1,458 830 - - = 1,458 B30 1,458,800
[Trade Recéivables 80,108 - BO108 80,108
Cither Raceivables 450 - 450 S0
Crher Financial Assets 116,643 - - - 116,553 116593
1.957,668 5,037 - 169440 1,132,096 | 2,148,436
Borrowings 1,556,658 - - - 1536658 | 1.556.658
{Cxher Payables: 12,496 12,495 12,496
{Prefesence Shires 370,000 370.000| 370,000
|Other financial liabilities 168,334 - 158,334 158,334
| 2,107,488 - 2,107488 | 2,107,488
26.2 Fair Value Measurement

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are inclucled ar the amount st which the instrument could be exchange in » current tamsiction between willing parries,
other than in forced or Raquidatson sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hisearchy thar categories the value inte 3 levels. The inpucs to valuarion réchnlques wsed to messure fair valoe of
financial inscruments are:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses quoted (adjosted] prices in active markets for identical sssets or lahllisied. The fair value of all bonds which are trsded in the srock exchanges s
valued using the closing price or dealer quotations as at the reparting date.
Level 2: The fair value of financisl instruments that are not traded in'an acrive market (for example traded bonds, over the counter derivarives) s determined using

valwation technigues which maximise the use of observable marker data snd rely =8 little a5 possible on company specific estimates. IF all significant inputs required to fir
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2

Eevel 3: Bf one or mave of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instriomens is included fn Level 3:



26,3 Financial rigk mansgement

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from Arancial instrumenis:

(il Credi risk

iy Liguidity risk

{jif} Market risk ~2

Risk management framewark

The Company's principsl financial Labilities comprises - of berrowings, and trade and other payatles. The maln purpose of these fnanctal lahilities is o finsnes the
Company operations. The Company’s principal fnancial assets include trade and other receivables, mvestments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from is
aperasions,

The Company’s activities expose it 1o 3 variety of fnancial risks, Including market risk. coedit ek and liquiditg rsk The Company's primary nsk managerment foous 15 o

minimise paterntial adverse effeces of market rigk on its finamclal performance. The Company uses derivative Anancial nstraments 1o mitkgste foreign exchange refated risk
eRposTe,

The Company's exposuse to credic risk is influenced mainly by the individhal characterisic of ssch customer snd the concentrarion of nsk from the top few customers. The
Company's tisk management ssgesament and policies and processes sre ssiablished to ldendify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, o set appropriate risk Thmies and

controls. and o moniter stch rigks and compliance with the same, Risk sssessment and management palicies and processes are reviewed regularly ro reflect chaiiges in
markes conditions and the Company's sctivities,

This note presents informarion sbout the Campany’s expoture ta each of the sbove risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk

(i) Credit risk

Credir risk is the risk of financial boss oo the Company if 8 customer of countsrparty o 2 financial inserument Bl ta meer fts contractual abligations, and arises primcipaily
from the Company's recebvables from customers andd loans. Im addition, credit risk zrises from Gnancs guarantees,

Company’s credit risk arises principally from the trade receivables snd cash & cash squivatents,

Custamar credit risk is managed cemmally by the company through eredit approvals establishing credir limits and continousdy monicoring the credit worthiness of the
customess to whom the credit & extended in the normal course of business. The concenrrarion of credis 1isk is limired due to the fact that the customer base s large and
unrelsted. The Company estimates the Expected Credit Losses on the basis of its evahaation of each case, Provision ls being made where the oustanding period exceeds 4
years (F50% followed by firther provision on vear to year basis based on the management evaluation of each case,

Crwndie risks from balances with bariks are mansged In accordance with the Commpany’s palicy

Exposure to credic risks

The carrying amouwnt of Anancial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposure ta credis risk. The maximium exposare to credit visk s of 31t March, 2003 snd 31
March, 2022 are as follows:

{2 in hundreds)

315,583 |
Advances 26,662 2712
352,245 1,488,542

i) Liquidiry risk
Liﬂpikiirrﬂ;ki:daﬂnﬁduﬂ“ risk. that the Company will mot be able to sertle or meet i obligations on time or at ressonable price. Prodent liquidity risk MEREgErTeT
implies maintaining sufficient cosh. and marketable securiries and the svailability of funding through sn adequate smount of credit Eacilities 1o mest obligations when due.
The Comipany's finance team is responsible for liquidiry, funding as well a5 sertlement mansgement. In addition. Processes and policies refared 1o such risks sre sversesn by
senlor management, Managemen: monitors the Company's liquidity position through ralling forecasss on the basis of expected cash Mows, The Company’s approach o
managing liquidity s v ensure, 25 far 2 possible, that It will always have sufficiens Hquidity, subject to its restractoring proposals, 1o meet its. Habilities when due, ander
both normal and stressed conditions,

In the opinizn of the minsgement, the Company's cash flow from business, borrewing or financing would be sofficient to meet the cash requiments for its operarion with
support of g lenders:

Exposure to liquidiry risk

The table below provides detalls regarding the remaining conuraerual marasities of financial liabilities av the reporting dare based on conmracral undiscounted payments:

(¥ in hundreds)

Borrowings 106628 0 | 106,23
Cther Financial Liabilines 71,508 71,808

156,658 |
Cther Financial Liabiliries 168,534 168,334




- |

Market risk is the risk of loss of furure earnings. fair value ox futuze cash Bows thar may result from 3 change in the price of a financial instrument . The velus of 3 Anscclal |
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign cummency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other marker changes that effect

marker rigk sensivive ibhstruments. Market visk s atrriburable to all markes risk cemsitive fnancial inscrumetis inchuding investmenes and depasits, foreign currency

receivables, payables snd horrowinegs. The godl of market rsk management is optimizamion of profl and controling the exposure to murker tisk within scceptable fimirs. |

{8} Currency risk
Fareign eurrency nisk is the rick impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an rxposure in foveign currency, which fluctuste dise to changes in forelgn exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign evchange rates relates primarily ro the import of raw. materials and spare pars: and expores of fimished

Exposure to cirrency risk
The comipany is not exposed 19 any curency risk.

(b} Interest rate risk

Inmterest wate risk is the risk that the fair value or farure cash fMows of o financial msoument will Aucmare because of changes in market intercst rtes. The Company
sxposure to the risk of changes i market Interest rates related primunily t the Company's shart term borrewing with floating intesest rates. The Company comstantly
monitors the credit markets and rebalances ies financing serategles to achbsve an optimal marurity profile and financing cos

Exposure to interest rate risk

The inverese rave profibe of the Company s interest bearing financial instrumenss ot the end of the reporting pericd are ad fallows:
(¥ in hundreds)

Leans 325,583 1,458,830
Bnrn:nr'lrrE 1,086,733 1,556,658
1,391,816 3015488

Fixed rate tnstromens chat ere corried ot amortised cost are mot sublect to interest rate risk for the purpose of sensirive analysis.
Cash flow sengitivity analysis for varishle rave instruments:
‘ The company does not have variable rate instrumenss. So the: company 45 not exposed to interssy rate risks,

) Equity price risks
The Company's exposire 10 equity securities price risk arises from movement in market price of relsted securities classified elther as fair value through OCT or as fair value
through profit and loss. The Company manages the price risk through diversified portfalio.

27 Capital Management (Ind AS 1)

The fundamental goals of capltal mansgement are & :

- safeguard cheir ability tu contimae as a going concern so that they can continue to provide réturns for shareholders and benefits for sther stskeholders, and

- mainein an eprimal capital sructure to reduce the costof capital;

The Board of Diversors has the primary responsibility to mainain & strong capital base and reduce the cosz of capital through prudent management of deplayed funds and

leweraging opportunities in demestic and international financlal markets 5o as to maintain investor, creditor snd marker confidence and 1o sustain furure development of the
busines:.

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issoed capital and all other equity reserves: The Company manages its capical struetus n Hght of
changes in the economir and regulatory envitonment and the requirements of the fmancial covenams, The Comparry spplied the same capiral risk managemen: strategy
that was applied in the previous period.




28, The 10wl comprehensive income has been attribured 1o che owner of the Company and 1o the nin-coniroling interess even If this sesults in the non-controling interes
having defic balance. Hence, the non-controlling inrerest are restated and reclassified &s per fhe requirements of Ind-AS.

Kanoria Securities & Financisl Services Led 186.19] (96,020, 505 2859
|Sabsidiaries:
| Indian
Agaresh Finance & Properries Lid {88.19) 44,450 9495 45,061
Minorry Interests in subsidiary ;
Indian

resh Finance & Properties Lid - i
oal 10000  (BLs7D) 100.00 750

Parenr:
Kanoria Securithes & Financiat Services Lid 97.27 21,759]] 105.75 11,887
15ubsidinyies:
Indian
Agaresh Finance & Properies Led .73 i (5.75) (619
Minorty Interests in subsichary :
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid : = : :
[Toar 100.00 (22.370)| 100.00 TLZ58]

|Klnoti-'l Securities & Financial Services Led 10000 (77.15%) 100.00 10,581
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Led - - =
L‘M Interests in subgidiary -
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid 3 .
otal 100.00 (7716 100.00 10,681

(Parent;
Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Lud 939 (98921} 10289 22568
Subsidiaries:
Indian
Agaresh Finance & Properties Lud 5] (611} {2.89) (&19)
Mincrty Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Led - = -
Tatal 100.00 (99,532} 10900




28 Previcus year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, renmmanged and reclassified wherever eonsidered nescesiary to eonform to this year's clsisificstion. Accerdingty,
amounts and ocher disclosures for ehe preceding years are included a1 an integral part of the surrem year Financial Statements and are to be read in relaton o smoumes and
other disclosures relaring to the cusrent year.

FARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION AMNEXED

As per our Report of even dare.
For 8. B, DANDEEER & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AADER S

F.R.N: 301009E Fale = \
L b ! )

(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) S

PARTNER N7 A =4

Membership Mo, 057903

Place : Kolkata

Dated: 30th May, 2023
UDIN: 22308403 E DO (LT3

For and on behalF of the Board
..u-":’:
R % A K Goenka
¥ Whale Time Director
DEN: 00337332 DIN- (312823

e iricat il =nd T —1
Ajit P. Walwankar
Company Secretary



